
Washington Avenue Connector 

Responses to Questions on the Request for Proposals 

 

1. Does DRWC have a not-to-exceed amount in mind for design services for this project? 

DRWC does not have a particular amount in mind. We expect the fee for design services to be 

reasonable given the proposed scope and past precedent of construction costs for these types 

of projects (see Question 2 below).  

2. Do you have a $/psf or $/acre cost for implementation and construction costs DRWC would like 

to aim for? / Regarding the Washington Avenue RFP, does the DRWC have an estimated total 

project or construction budget for this work? / Can you provide an approximate cost for 

implementation of either project, based on previous project experience? 

 

Construction costs for previous connector street projects have ranged from $2.3M (Race Street) 

to just over $3M (Spring Garden Street). We do not have a set construction budget for this 

project, but anticipate the cost per square foot being comparable to our earlier projects.  

 

3. You mentioned in the meeting that PWD does not consider this area a priority for stormwater 

management and thus is unlikely to contribute funding for that type of intervention here. Is 

stormwater management / infiltration on this site still a priority for DRWC? 

DRWC would still expect that various stormwater management strategies be looked at as part of 
a comprehensive design, regardless of PWD funding, and work with PWD to understand the 
issues in the area and determine what strategies, if any, make sense as part of the connector 
project. 

4. For both DRWC projects are the survey plans and final cad drawings to follow PennDOT 

standards developed in MicroStation or follow City of Philadelphia standards (PWD) developed 

in AutoCad? 

 

We will make this decision in consultation with PennDOT and the City of Philadelphia once a 

consultant team has been selected. Previous projects have followed City of Philadelphia 

standards.  

 

5. Your scope defines 3 public large scale meetings, but suggests multiple focus-groups and smaller 

stakeholder meetings. Is there any way to objectively quantify the number of these meetings to 

insure a consistent scope from all the proposals? 

 

Our intention in framing the scope in this way was to solicit ideas from respondents on 

alternative ways to engage the public in the design process outside of the traditional public 



meeting format. That said and in the interest of consistency, we would suggest including 2-3 

meetings per design phase that could be held in addition to the larger-scale public meetings. 

 

6. Should a NPDES submittal be assumed on both projects? Or do you want it identified as an 

additional service? 

 

Previous connector street projects have not met the threshold of earth disturbance to require 

an NPDES permit. While we cannot know the full impact of the Washington Avenue Connector 

at this point (as there is no design), for the purposes of the RFP and in order to ensure 

consistency across responses, respondents may assume that an NPDES permit will be required 

and will be pursued in conjunction with PWD’s Stormwater Plan Review.    

 

7. Is it your intent to hire a single team to do both projects, or two different teams? 

 

It is not our intent, but we have also not ruled that our as a possibility. We will be reviewing 

proposals for the two projects separately and if the same team is the best qualified for both 

projects, we are open to selecting that team to complete both.  

 

8. Can you suggest, based on your previous collaboration with PennDOT at the other overpasses, 

the effort expected from your consultants to coordinate this work?  

 

Any changes to the underpasses, including affixing items to abutment walls, columns, girders, 

etc. will require PennDOT review through their Highway Occupancy Permit (HOP) process. 

Depending on what is proposed, this review may take several review cycles to address all 

PennDOT comments and can take several months. Through our prior experience on Race Street 

and Spring Garden Street, DRWC has developed an understanding of what PennDOT will look for 

in these submissions and ideally this prior experience, along with early coordination with 

PennDOT prior to an HOP submission, can help streamline the process.  

 

9. Has the DRWC developed its own design criteria or quality standards for landscape or 

streetscape features (different than Streets or PennDOT standards)? 

While DRWC has developed trail design standards, we have not done the same for connector 

streets. While the overall goals for connector streets are the same (improved lighting, 

landscaping, street furnishings, etc), each street has a unique set of characteristics and 

challenges so we have not established further specific standards as we envision each one having 

a unique design that draws from its context for inspirations. Consistent with previous projects, 

DRWC expects to handle maintenance of all components of a connector street after 

construction but should an element fall under Streets Department or PennDOT for maintenance, 

it should meet Streets Department or PennDOT standards. 

 



10. Who are the members of DRWC’s Planning Committee that will be reviewing the proposals and 

overseeing the project?  

The members of DRWC’s Planning Committee are as follows: 

Marilyn Jordan Taylor 

Anne Fadullon 

Matt Ruben 

Avi Eden 

Mario Zacharjasz 

Michael Hauptman 

 

 

 


